
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Wednesday, 18th September, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4. ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5. MINUTES 3 - 9

To consider the minutes of the meetings of the Committee, held 20th 
June and 28th August 2019.

6. ROCHDALE BOROUGHWIDE HOUSING 10 - 29

A presentation by the Chief Executive of Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing (RBH) (to be circulated) relating to RBH’s Lettings Policy and 
performance management indicators.

Public Document Pack



7. TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT COMPANIES - 2019/20 GRANT 30 - 33

To consider information relating to the Town Centre Management 
Companies.

8. ROCHDALE SAFER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP COMMUNITY 
SAFETY PLAN 2019 - 2022 

34 - 43

To present the Council’s revised Community Safety Plan

9. CLIMATE CHANGE 

Director of Neighbourhoods to report

10. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/2020 44 - 46

To note the Committee’s Work Programme 2019/2020

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members
Councillor Tom Besford Councillor Jacqueline Beswick
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Andy Kelly Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Angela Smith Councillor June West
Councillor Peter Williams Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson 
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, Ol16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 20th June 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Meredith (in the Chair); Councillors: Besford, Hartley 
(substituting for Councillor Beswick), West, Winkler and Zaheer

OFFICERS:  D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place), S. Ayres, H. Chicot 
(Economy Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor Blundell (Cabinet Member – 
Regeneration, Business, Skills and Employment Portfolio) and D. Cooke 
(Rochdale development Agency)

APOLOGIES
1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beswick, Angela 
Smith and Peter Williams. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
3 Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 24th January 2019, be 
approved as a correct record.

POST OFFICES
4 The Committee received notes of a meeting that Members had held 
with representatives of the Post Office, on 6th June 2019, regarding the future 
operation of Heywood and Middleton Post Offices, further to the Notice of 
Motion considered and approved by the Council, in this regard, at its meeting 
on 26th March 2019.

Resolved:
That the notes of the meeting, held 6th June 2019 be noted.

LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION - YEAR END REPORT
5 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
report which detailed the applications received, successful awards and the 
annual spend of the Discretionary Crisis Fund. The report also detailed 
access to food banks in the Borough and reports on the performance and 
successes of the community projects funded by the local welfare provision 
budget

The Discretionary Crisis Fund received 1,448 applications in 2018/19; 49% of 
these were made via the telephone, with the remainder being submitted 
online. 65% of applications were successful and 29% were refused. 83 of the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



applications were withdrawn or cancelled by applicants, or were pending a 
decision at the year-end.

In presenting the report the Committee was advised that there were no 
alternatives were considered in relation to the provision of the managed 
service. However due to an increase in both the cost of this provision and the 
items being awarded via the scheme, it was suggested that the Committee be 
consulted on a number of future options. Analysis of the new cost regime, 
against spend on awards over past few years, would mean on average that it 
would cost the Council approximately £47,000 - £50,000 more per annum to 
continue provision at the current level; albeit dependant on demand. Five 
options were therefore presented to the Committee:

a. Option 1 – to continue with current provision levels
b. Option 2 – to remove the option for applicants to be awarded 

cutlery/crockery and pans when resettling (237 households benefitted 
from this award in 2018/19)

c. Option 3 – to remove the option for applicants with children to be 
awarded carpets when resettling (139 households benefitted from this 
award in 2018/19)

d. Option 4 – to cease providing emergency help with household energy 
(709 households benefitted from this award in 2018/19)

e. Option 5 – to limit funding to community projects grant funded via the 
Innovation Fund

The determination of the above options, for the future operation of the scheme 
was a function that had been delegated to the Cabinet Member for Planning, 
Development and Housing to determine.

Resolved:
1. That the annual report on the operation, during 2018/19, of the 

Discretionary Crisis Fund be noted and welcomed.
2. The Cabinet Member for Planning, Development and Housing be 

advised that his Committee, further to paragraph 4.33 of the submitted 
report, recommends that Option 1 (to continue with the current 
provision levels) be approved.

INTEGRATED PLACE WORK
6 Further to the Committee’s meeting held on 21st March 2018, members 
received a presentation, from the Director of Neighbourhoods (Integrated 
Place Project Lead Officer), which updated them on the Integrated Place 
Work project. The Integrated Place project involved a group of workers from 
different public services and third sector organisations who worked together in 
a particular area. The team was led by Rochdale Borough Council. The team 
includes a number of organisations (such as RBH, Police and the Fire and 
Rescue Service).

The team worked in a particular area for a period of time to support people 
who may need lots of different services at the same time. The idea was that, 
instead of having to access these services separately, it made more sense for 
all organisations to work together to help the person move on. An example 

Page 4



was a person that may need help with housing, health and relationships all at 
the same time. This could of course be confusing so the team would help to 
put those services in an order that made sense. They would also help the 
person to be more confident in asking for help or learning to do something.

The presentation generated a discussion at the meeting and numerous 
questions from Members. The Committee noted that projects had taken place 
in the Balderstone and Kirkholt and Spotland and Falinge Wards, which had 
proven to be highly successful. The project was due to begin operations on a 
Township level which would mean that it will be able to spread the work to 
other parts of the Borough in due course. In this regard it was noted that a 
project was soon to commence in the Darnhill area of Heywood Ward and a 
further project was to be started, at a date yet to be determined, in the 
Middleton Township. It was suggested that a follow up presentation/report be 
brought back to the Committee in due course to report on progress.

Decision:
1. That the presentation be noted and welcomed,
2. That the Integrated Place Project Lead Officer be invited to attend a 

future meeting of the Committee, to report on progress in relation to the 
Integrated Place Work Project, particularly after projects have 
commenced in Heywood and Middleton.

ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLANS 2018-19: QUARTER 4 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE
7 The Committee scrutinised the progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st 
January – 31st March 2019) towards achievement of the targets contained in 
the Economy Directorate Plan 2018-19.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.

66.67% (6) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2018-19 were still 
ongoing.  One further action had passed the action deadline date and was yet 
to be completed.

The Portfolio Holder (Regeneration, Business, Skills and Employment) 
presented the report and updated the Committee on regeneration projects that 
were ongoing or in preparation across the Borough. The Portfolio Holder 
reported that he had recently held ‘walk about’ sessions in Heywood and 
Middleton and that information on these would be presented to the 
appropriate Township Committee in due course.

Resolved:
That the Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2019) progress towards 
achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 2018-
19 be noted.

Page 5



NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLAN 2018-19: QUARTER 4 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE
8 The Committee scrutinised the progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st 
January – 31st March 2019) towards achievement of the targets contained in 
the Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.

55.6% (10) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2018-19 were still 
ongoing. A further 38.9% (7) of the actions had passed their due date and 
were not fully complete.

The Committee was updated on the development of the Junction 19(M62) link 
road, which was a major infrastructure project that would bring many new jobs 
to the Borough. In this regard a planning application was due to be presented 
to the Council’s Planning and Licensing Committee in the autumn of 2019. 

Resolved:
That the Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2018) progress towards 
achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2018-19 be noted.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20
9 The Committee considered a Work Programme for the ensuing 
Municipal Year. In considering topics and issues for future meetings it was 
suggested that Rochdale Boroughwide Housing be invited to the next 
scheduled meeting on 18th September 2019 to discuss their Lettings Policy, 
amongst other housing issues that may be of concern to Committee 
Members); that representatives of Greater Manchester Police/Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership be invited to the Committee’s meeting on 21st 
November to discuss anti-social behaviour, the progress of Public Space 
Protection Orders and other matters appertaining to policing in the Borough 
and that that meeting of the Committee receive a report/presentation 
regarding the arrival of Dippy the Dinosaur, who is due to arrive in Rochdale, 
for a four month stay in February 2020. Also it was requested that at the 
meeting, scheduled to be held on 20th February 2020, a report/presentation 
detailing the progress and current situation of the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework be submitted. 

The Chair suggested that the Committee establish an ‘Energy Study group’ to 
examine, amongst other things the possibility of the establishment of an 
energy company for Greater Manchester; to examine the current provision of 
renewable energy supplies for domestic and commercial customers across 
the Greater Manchester footprint; to assess the statutory basis on the powers 
available for local authorities to intervene; to determine if the current 
arrangements that apply (in terms of energy provision) are fit for purpose; to 
assess if there is scope for improvements to that provision via the provision of 

Page 6



cheaper and renewable sources of power; to recommend appropriate 
remedial action (including the establishment of a local authority run energy 
company if necessary); and to give consideration to the establishment of a 
local authority controlled energy companies.

Decision:
1. That the Committee’s Work Programme 2019/20, incorporating the 

additions detailed above be approved;
2. The Committee establish an Energy Study Group to examine the 

current provision of renewable energy supplies for domestic and 
commercial customers across the Borough and the wider Greater 
Manchester footprint.

Page 7



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday 28th August 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Meredith (in the Chair) Councillors Besford, Beswick, 
Susan Emmott, Smith and Zaheer

OFFICERS: Peter Gregory (Economy Directorate) and Alison James 
(Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Brett, Councillor Dutton; Two members 
of the public

10 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor West, Councillor Peter 
Williams and Councillor Winkler.

11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

12 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
There were no urgent items of business.

13 DISPOSAL OF LAND AT STARKEY STREET/LANGTON STREET, 
HEYWOOD
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources which 
presented details of a decision that has been made by the Cabinet, at its 
meeting on 30th July (minute 28: Disposal of Land at Starkey Street/Langton 
Street, Heywood), which had been called-in by Councillors O’Rourke and 
Rush.

Councillors Rush and O’Rourke had called-in this item for the following 
reasons:

1) There was insufficient consultation on the proposals. In the Cabinet’s report 
it mentions that there has been consultation with the North Heywood 
members
and discussion with the Chair of Heywood Township. Moreover the report 
states that Heywood North Councillors oppose the move without giving any 
detailed narrative in support.

2) Lack of understanding of the decision that Cabinet has made and the 
reasons for the decision being made. In this regard it is possible that one 
Cabinet Member was of the opinion that the land was being disposed at 
another location.

Public Document Pack

Page 8



Councillor Brett, Chair of Cabinet, Councillors O’Rourke and Rush, the calling 
in Members, Councillor Dutton and a member of the public addressed the 
Committee with regard to the call in.

Resolved:

1. That the matter be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration with the 
following recommendations:

 That Plot of land 2 (adjacent to Hilda Street) be released for disposal;
 That Plots of land 1 and 3 be not disposed of and that further work be 

undertaken to assess the potential for future ownership of the land;

2. That the way consultation responses on future reports of this nature is 
included be reviewed to ensure that the views of Townships are fully 
incorporated;

3. That it be noted that the Communities Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will undertake a review of the whole 
process for disposals of land as part of their work programme.

Page 9



P
age 10

A
genda Item

 6



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 11



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 12



•

•

•

P
age 13



P
age 14



P
age 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



P
age 18



P
age 19



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20



P
age 21



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 22



P
age 23



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 24



P
age 25



•

•

•

•

P
age 26



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 27



P
age 28

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiylrOe56_PAhWG0RQKHRuvDvIQjRwIBw&url=http://www.rbh.org.uk/&bvm=bv.133700528,d.ZGg&psig=AFQjCNGsAOKiqF4AdND6gNOazj4UkxoMOA&ust=1475074581106958
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwi9tZ6G56_PAhWKbRQKHQeoB-8QjRwIBw&url=https://twitter.com/theregendagroup&bvm=bv.133700528,d.ZGg&psig=AFQjCNH2cyMk3Jm7nY-FiVjscSm_LBa3VA&ust=1475074536568926
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjGuuLn5q_PAhUCVRQKHewyC2oQjRwIBw&url=http://www.guinnesspartnershipcareers.com/&bvm=bv.133700528,d.ZGg&psig=AFQjCNHdSwRWnciG-gFAfzqUKU1Ui-PIWQ&ust=1475074483443981
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj7-uC95q_PAhXJxxQKHfNWA3cQjRwIBw&url=http://www.moreindependent.co.uk/partners/riverside/&psig=AFQjCNF3gh8jKO6tRLPt8i1kQwHBags35A&ust=1475074391510997
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiZ17mo5q_PAhVC0RQKHdBnAO4QjRwIBw&url=http://www.wendybarratt.com/project-gp-logo.php&psig=AFQjCNFmF5DkXsdj7b96_9uE0RQYwxybkg&ust=1475074317588174
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL1cWr6K_PAhUBjxQKHdwpBQsQjRwIBw&url=http://www.jmha.co.uk/accreditations.html&bvm=bv.133700528,d.ZGg&psig=AFQjCNGuj8P2oypqWhOHq9-r60CRIa6NvQ&ust=1475074857644344


P
age 29



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 18th September 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment

Report Author Susan Ayres
Public/Private Document Public

Town Centre Management Companies - 2019/20 Grant

Executive Summary

1. Rochdale Council has Grant Funding Agreements with both Rochdale Town 
Centre Management Company and Middleton Town Centre Management 
Company for 2019/20. The Agreements for these discretionary grants detail 
the activity which the grant funding will support, the conditions attached to the 
award of the grant and monitoring requirements.

Recommendation

2. That members review and note the information in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Progress towards targets contained within the grant funding agreements 
between the Council (Economy Directorate) and external organisations are to 
be reported to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny meetings once a year.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Town Centre Management Companies have been established across the UK 
for over 20 years. Their principal aim is to promote the viability and vitality of 
town centres through active partnerships of the public/private and voluntary 
sectors.  Each town centre and their needs and opportunities are different and 
therefore structures, aims and objectives and governance are unique to each 
town.

The financial information below provides members with awareness of the 
complete financial contribution to the companies from the Council in 2019/20. 
Both Town Centre Management Companies are funded on the basis of project 
plans which outline activities and outcomes which were negotiated at the 
beginning of the year. Both companies are responsible for liaison with town 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



centre businesses on behalf of the council, event organisation and promotion 
of the town centres.  Payment is quarterly in arrears on receipt of a monitoring 
return. In addition to the 2019/20 grant, both companies have grant funding 
from the council for specific activity such as events, subject to funding being 
available.

Rochdale Town Centre Management Company (RTCM)

Since April 2019, RTCM is now trading as Rochdale BID (Business 
Improvement District) following a successful ballot of town centre business 
and organisations. This generates £195,780 in a levy on top of business rates 
paid by town centre occupiers of properties with a rateable value of over 
£12,000. The Council’s levy payment for 2019/20 is £36,264.  This is the 
largest levy payment in the town centre and contributes to a overall budget of 
£215,780 for the BID in 2019/20.

To support the BID in its early stages, it was agreed to provide transitional 
support for the first year (2019/20) via a grant. In 2020/21 the Rochdale 
Riverside development will be complete and generate additional levy 
payments of £60k.  

Councillor Brett represents the Council on the Company Board.

Council financial support
 Grant from Economic Affairs - £ 47,655
 Grant for up to 50% of the costs of 2019 Street Eat - £10,000
 Grant to support the Early Evening Economy prior to Rochdale 

Riverside opening. This was awarded in 2018 but the balance of 
£31,684 is remaining for 2019/20

 Use of the JC Decaux/Council advertising boards to earn income 
- £12,759

 Contribution of £10,000 to the Time Machine event in May 2019 
involving Town Hall consultation exercise.

Quarter 1 claim for the Economic Affairs Grant
 Amount approved from the claim = £5,097
 The grant funds 20% of the two members of staff plus 20% of the 

Ranger to be recruited in September and 100% of an apprentice to be 
recruited later in the year.

 Activity included:
o Visits and support to 5 new and relocating town centre 

businesses
o Monthly walkabouts with Environmental Management to highlight 

particular issues such as  street cleansing
o Use of all social media channels to promote events and offers. 

This quarter had a 6.6% increase in Instagram followers.
o CCTV reviewed daily and issues, trends and concerns raised 

with partners. A particular issue this quarter has been the 
visibility of CCTV in a certain location which needs foliage cut 
back.

o Co-ordination of Pubwatch meetings and follow up action 

Page 31



involving all town centre pubs and bars, GMP and RBC 
Licencing.

o Reporting of faults to the Street Lighting Team and discussion 
about opportunities to improve street and Christmas lighting.

 Q1 progress towards annual targets in the project plans
Communication and Business 
Liaison
Environment
Safety and Security

 Activity is yet to start on the proposed customer service excellence 
award and new business crime prevention schemes

Early Evening Economy Board Q1 activity:
 Market research and analysis undertaken by Fast Web Media
 Easter Ale Trail – Several visitors from outside the borough with some 

from Halifax and Darlington. Good feedback from the town centre bars.

Street Eat Grant
 Event held on 25th and 26th May
 Estimated attendance was 3000 over 2 days involving 10 local 

businesses. The evaluation, feedback and publicity was positive.

Middleton Town Centre Management Company (MTCM Co)

Council financial support
 Grant from Economic Affairs - £31,500
 Grant from Middleton Township - £10,000
 Grant from Middleton Township for the Christmas Lights Switch-

on event - £3000.

Quarter 1 claim for the Economic Affairs Grant
 Amount approved from the claim = £7,875
 The grant funds 100% of a part time role.
 Activity which in this quarter is aimed at young families included:

o Events to attract shoppers to the town centre:
 2 Brass Band Saturdays each attracting 50-70 additional 

town centre visitors
 Easter Extravaganza involving 152 children in a Easter 

Treasure Hunt around market stalls and traders with 
additional entertainment – Punch & Judy, face painter and 
magician. The event had good pre and post event 
coverage on social media, online and printed press 
(Rochdale Online and Middleton Guardian)

 ‘One Great Day’ event jointly delivered with Middleton 
Shopping Centre to raise money for a local children’s 
charity. This involved Link4Life and a local children’s 
theatre workshop and flash mob.

o In Bloom – MTCM produced packs for the judging about the 

Page 32



town centre, it’s floral displays, town centre events and 
Middleton’s heritage

o Planning for events in Q2 – Oktoberfest and Christmas Lights 
Switch-on began.

o Social media promotion of the town centre with boosted 
facebook advertising and sharing to other pages such as Old 
Middleton, New Middleton and Middleton Shopping Centre.  New 
visitors to the town centre identified as a direct result of online 
promotion. Use of ‘like’ and ‘share’ competitions.

 Q1 progress towards annual targets in the project plan
Events
Social media
Business Liaison

Alternatives Considered
That members are not provided with this information and therefore are unable 
to scrutinise performance.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The budget for 2019/20 for the 2 Town Centre Management companies is 
within the Economic Affairs 2019/20 budget.

Risk and Policy Implications

No risk or policy implications arise from this report.6.

Consultation

7. Not required – Report for information only.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Grant agreements and Q1 
monitoring returns

Economic Affairs, Floor 3, Number One 
Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Susan Ayres, Tel: 01706 925636, 
susan.ayres@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 33



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting Meeting date 27th August 
2019

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Report Author Mark Dalzell
Public/Private Document Public

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Community Safety Plan 
2019 - 2022

Executive Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to present the council’s revised Community 
Safety Plan that is formulated and delivered by the Community Safety 
Partnership.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members approve the plan in appendix 1

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) has a duty under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to draw up and implement a strategy for reducing crime and 
disorder in their area.

The Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy) 
Regulations 2007 set out the way in which the responsible authorities should 
carry out their functions as a CSP under Section 6 of the Act, and require the 
preparation of a partnership plan for the local government area, setting out the 
CSP’s priorities.

The current plan covers the period of 2015 – 2018.  A new plan is required to 
outline the priorities that are to be the focus of delivery plans by responsible 
authorities.

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The plan supports the development of simpler plans that are accessible and 
customer facing.

The revised plan has been informed by information from the residents’ 
survey in 2018 and a strategic threat assessment that included qualitative 
and quantitative data to assess the scale, trend, intelligence assessment 
and knowledge of themes.

Themes considered included:

 Residential Burglary
 Serious Violent Crime
 Child Sexual Exploitation
 Youth related anti-social behaviour
 Modern Slavery
 Domestic Abuse
 Organised Crime
 Substance Abuse – including drugs and new psychoactive 

substances
 Night time economy and issues in our town centres
 Community tensions
 Sexual offences
 Cyber Enable Fraud

Workshops with the responsible authorities ranked the thematic areas using 
a Management of Risk in Law Enforcement (MoRiLE) assessment model to 
rank the priority areas and create agreed priority work areas for the 
formulation of delivery plans to achieve the desired outcomes of the 
strategy.

The plan has been endorsed by the Community Safety Partnership with the 
five priority areas so that people and communities in Rochdale will be :

• Free from the harm of domestic abuse and violence
• Free from the harm of organised crime and exploitation 
• Safe from crime and antisocial behaviour
• Able to enjoy themselves in the town centres
• Able to live, work, learn and socialise in harmony

The plan takes account of and links to the priorities in The Police and Crime 
Plan, ‘Standing Together’ (Greater Manchester Combined Authority).

The plan supports the outcomes identified by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and the outcomes described in the Corporate Plan 2019 – 2022.

Delivery plans for the five areas are being developed by priority sub groups 
under the Safer Communities Partnership Board to take account of existing 

Page 35



work streams, including the work of Safeguarding boards, to avoid 
duplication and to share information to maintain and further develop a 
partnership approach to community safety.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The plan takes account of the council’s Financial Strategy.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are risks associated with community safety that must be mitigated 
through a partnership response to emerging threats and intelligence.  The 
plan is reviewed annually to ensure that the priorities are aligned 
appropriately.

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, as amended by the Police 
and Justice Act 2006, requires responsible authorities to consider crime and 
disorder (including antisocial behaviour and other behaviour adversely 
affecting the local environment); and the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other 
substances in the exercise of all their duties, activities and decision-making. 
This means that in all policies, strategies and service delivery there is a need 
to consider the likely impact on crime and disorder.
 

6.

Consultation

7. Residents Survey -  2018
Communities, Regeneration and Environment O & S – 21 November 2018
Safer Communities’ Partnership Board – 23rd April 2019

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Mark Dalzell, Tel: 01706 924328, 
mark.dalzell@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 36



ROCHDALE SAFER  
COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP
Protecting and strengthening communities and places
Our plan 2019 - 2022

Safer Rochdale
Rochdale • Middleton • Heywood • Pennines

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   1 25/06/2019   10:15

P
age 37



We are confident that the new 
Community Safety Plan will help us to 
respond appropriately to current and 
emerging issues that affect our local 
and diverse communities. 

Our approach is simple - it’s about 
cooperation, people behaving in ways 
that have a positive impact on our 
borough and working together to tackle 
negative behaviour. 

Everyone has a responsibility to protect 
and strengthen our communities and 
places.

We are committed to ensuring our 
communities remain confident and 
supported, feel safe and are safe. 

Rochdale faces significant challenges 
and our partnership plan ensures that 
we are tackling the issues that have the 
most impact on our people and places. 

We have successfully developed 
partnership working and continue to 
improve community engagement and 
participation, to deliver reductions in 
crime and antisocial behaviour and 
improved community safety.

Foreword

Steve Rumbelow,  
Chief Executive,  
Rochdale Borough Council

Neil Evans,  
Territorial Commander,  
Rochdale, Oldham and Tameside

2 3

The borough of Rochdale is one of ten local authority 
areas in Greater Manchester and part of the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA). Sitting 
within the north east section of the region, the 
borough is strategically-placed between a number of 
important locations and is undergoing a huge, positive 
transformation. 

According to the Office for National Statistics’ 2017 
mid-year population estimates, there are 218,400 
people living in the borough of Rochdale.

The borough is divided between five ‘township’ areas – 
Rochdale north, Rochdale south, Heywood, Middleton, 
and Pennines. Each area has its own distinct identity 
and character and the townships contain several other 
communities.

Although there are areas of relative wealth within 
the borough, there are a number of areas that fall 
within the most deprived in the country. The normal 
challenges associated with areas of high deprivation 
can be found in these areas.

There are also areas with high levels of diversity 
within the borough and in some wards more than  
40 per cent of residents are from a BME background.

 

Introduction

Welcome to Rochdale’s Community Safety Plan. 

The plan sets out how we can make the borough a safe and welcoming place 
for everyone.

We all need to behave in ways that have a positive impact on those that live,  
work or visit.

We all need to work together to tackle behaviour that has a negative impact  
on our borough.

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   2-3 25/06/2019   10:15

P
age 38



Our aims
Helping each other to feel safe -  
Assisting those living in Rochdale homes and neighbourhoods, as well 
as those who work or visit the borough.

Strengthening our sense of community -  
Encouraging strong and positive relationships between people from 
different backgrounds and creating a feeling of belonging in our 
neighbourhoods.

Increasing confidence in our response to crime and disorder -  
Ensuring that people are happy with the way that we deal with 
offenders and support victims of crime.

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership (RSCP)

4 5

Priorities and Themes

People and communities in Rochdale will be:

•  Free from the harm of domestic abuse  
and violence

•  Free from the harm of organised crime  
and exploitation  

• Safe from crime and antisocial behaviour

• Able to enjoy themselves in the town centres

•  Able to live, work, learn and socialise in 
harmony

Our work will be focused on:

• Raising awareness

• Enabling challenge

• Changing behaviours

• Safeguarding vulnerable people

• Providing support for victims

• Dealing with offenders and reoffenders

Our Priorities Our Themes

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership uses a variety data to understand the issues 
that cause most harm and that matter most to our residents, including strategic threat 
assessments and resident surveys. 

Strategic threat assessments look at crime rates and volumes to tell us what crime types 
pose a threat to communities. Resident surveys gather the views of local people about crime 
and safety in the borough of Rochdale and Greater Manchester. The information helps us to 
determine our priorities.

We have identified five priorities for protecting and strengthening communities and places. 
These are the areas that really need our attention, although we will continue to address other 
crime and community safety issues.  

We have also identified six themes around which our work will be focused.

Rochdale is required to have a Safer Communities Partnership, by law.

The Partnership is made up of representatives from Rochdale Borough Council, the police, the fire service, the probation service, 
the local clinical commissioning group and other organisations.

The Partnership supports the priorities set out in the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Plan.

The Partnership aims to tackle crime in the borough and the underlying causes of it.

The Partnership uses a mix of prevention and intervention activity as part of its policing and community safety work.

The Partnership shares money and resources to commission services and implement effective approaches.

Police and Crime Plan priorities
To keep people safe -  
For those who live, work, socialise and travel in Greater Manchester, 
as well as protecting those who are vulnerable.

To reduce harm and offending -  
Preventing antisocial and criminal behaviour by intervening earlier 
and rehabilitating offenders.

To strengthen communities and places -  
By helping to build resilient communities and strengthening the 
delivery of public assets.

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   4-5 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 39



What is it?
Domestic abuse is any incident or pattern of incidents 
of controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, 
violence or abuse that can have a psychological, 
physical, sexual, economic or emotional impact on 
another person.

Why is it important?
Domestic abuse is a cruel and complex crime that 
can affect anyone. Tackling domestic abuse ensures 
that lives are not destroyed and people do not have to 
endure physical and emotional scars.

 
 

What does success look like?
•  Children and adults understand about healthy 

relationships 

•  Families are able to effectively deal with and 
manage conflict 

•   Children and young people are protected from the 
effects of domestic abuse

•  Communities and agencies report and refer  
incidents of domestic abuse 

•  People who engage in domestic abuse are deterred 
from their activities and prosecuted

•  People who are at risk of or suffering domestic 
abuse are protected

•  Offenders engage in behaviour and lifestyle 
programmes to enable rehabilitation and minimise 
reoffending

•  Victims (including specific groups LGBT+, elderly 
etc.) and those impacted by domestic abuse are 
able to access services, support packages and safe 
accommodation

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be free from the harm of domestic abuse and violence

6 7

What is it?
Organised crime is crime that is planned, coordinated 
and conducted by people working together on a 
continuing basis, often for financial gain and involving 
violence, threat of violence, bribery and corruption.

Why is it important?
Organised crime can make communities fearful 
and divided and encourage other types of crime and 
antisocial behaviour. Disrupting organised crime 
ensures that people are not deprived of their security, 
prosperity and identity.

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  Children and adults understand the reality and 

consequences of organised crime 

•  Children and young people are protected from 
becoming victims of exploitation

•  Communities and agencies report and support our 
work in disrupting organised crime 

•  People who support and benefit from participating 
in organised crime are deterred from their 
activities and prosecuted

•  Offenders engage in behaviour and lifestyle 
programmes to enable rehabilitation and minimise 
reoffending

•  Victims, witnesses and communities affected by 
serious and organised crime are able to access 
services and support packages 

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be free from the harm of organised crime and exploitation

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   6-7 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 40



What is it?
Town centres have shops and can have major public 
transport hubs such as train or bus stations; public 
buildings such as town halls and libraries, statues and 
public spaces. Town centres are important to a local 
thriving economy.

Why is it important?
Town centres have a higher concentration of people, 
places and spaces that can make them vulnerable 
to crime and antisocial behaviour. Creating more 
desirable town centres attracts people to live, work 
and visit. 

 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  Buildings and places have good security making 

them less vulnerable to crime

•  Children and adults know what measures they can 
take to stay safe in the day and night time economy            

•  Persistent offenders are excluded from town 
centres and retail premises

• Licensed premises are managed and controlled

•  The transport network and traffic violations are 
managed and controlled to enable safer travel

•  The environment (including lighting, litter, graffiti) 
is managed and controlled so that town centres 
offer a positive experience  

•  Vulnerable individuals in town centres are able to 
access services and support packages

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be able to enjoy themselves in the town centres

What is it?
Crime and antisocial behaviour is illegal or 
unacceptable activity that can cause harm to 
individuals, communities or environments.  
Some activity is punishable by law. 

Why is it important?
Crime and antisocial behaviour has a negative 
impact on society and the economy and the disruption 
it causes can last for a long time. Tackling it helps to 
improve the quality of life for people that live, work  
or visit the borough. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  Children and adults understand about activities 

that can lead to crime and different types of crime 
(including hidden crimes)

•  People know what measures they can take to 
protect themselves from crime and antisocial 
behaviour

•  Families are supported to change behaviours of 
children and young people exhibiting problem 
behaviour

•  Individuals and families are supported to change 
behaviours and situations that precede offending

•  People who engage in nuisance behaviour and 
crime are deterred from their activities and 
prosecuted (in particular prejudice motivated 
crimes and more serious violent crimes)

•  Offenders engage in behaviour and lifestyle 
programmes to enable rehabilitation and minimise 
reoffending

•  Victims (in particular those at a higher risk 
of crime and repeat victims), witnesses and 
communities are able to access services and 
support packages

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be safe from crime and antisocial behaviour 

8 9

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   8-9 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 41



•  Feeling of safety (at home, work, socialising, 
travelling)

•  Confidence in accessing the police in an emergency 
situation

•  Confidence in accessing the police, local authority or 
criminal justice service in a non-emergency situation

•  Satisfaction with services received (from the council, 
police or criminal justice system)

•  Satisfaction with cleanliness and maintenance of 
the area

• Feeling that there is a sense of community

Measuring success

We will monitor and report on these key indicators, so we know if the 
Partnership is meeting its aims.

We will also monitor our performance for each of the priorities.

Key indicators:

For more information visit rochdale.gov.uk

What is it?
Cohesive and integrated communities is about 
people – whatever their background – living, working, 
learning and socialising together, based on shared 
rights, responsibilities and opportunities. 

Why is it important?
When communities are divided along race, faith or 
socio-economic lines, this can lead to increased levels 
of fear, inequality, prejudice and conflict. Evidence 
shows that a less cohesive and integrated community 
faces challenges around economic, cultural and social 
opportunities.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  A borough where people, whatever their 

background, live, work, learn and socialise 
together, based on shared rights, responsibilities 
and opportunities 

•  A borough, where many religions, cultures and 
opinions are celebrated, underpinned by a shared 
set of values that champion tolerance, freedom and 
equality of opportunity 

•  Support is available for new and emerging 
communities that integrate and have an ability to 
adapt to migration

People and communities in Rochdale Borough  
will be able to live, work, learn and socialise in harmony 

10 11

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   10-11 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 42



Safer Rochdale
Rochdale • Middleton • Heywood • Pennines

Associated Plan

Standing Together Plan for Greater Manchester: link to 
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/police-plus-
fire/police-and-crime-plan

Finding out more about the RSCP

Email: community.safety@rochdale.gov.uk

Call: 0300 303 8878

Write to: 
Community Safety
Floor 2
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU

For more information and to report antisocial behaviour visit 
rochdale.gov.uk

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   12 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 43

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/police-plus-fire/police-and-crime-plan


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2019/2020

Introduction

The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc. that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities.

Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward.

In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:-

 
 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this 
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in 
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an 
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues 
can be brought forward as indicated above.    

Page 44

Agenda Item 10



20th June 2019

18th September 2019

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership 
Update

Performance management and 
monitoring

RBH Housing Stock Scrutiny of RBH performance
Climatic Issue (Director of Neighbourhoods 
to report)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale and Middleton Town Centre 
Management

Scrutiny of Performance and 
proposals 

21st November 2019

Work Programme Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Highways - Winter Services Update for information
‘Dippy the Dinosaur’ presentation on 
proposals for Rochdale’s hosting of Dippy in 
2020

Presentation/update

Flood Defences (Director of Neighbourhood 
to report)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Public Space Protection Orders – update Performance management and 
monitoring

Directorate Plan Updates – 1st and 2nd 
Quarter Reports 2018/19

 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate (incorporating 

RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

20th February 2020

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/2019

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare 
Provision Year End Report 2017/18

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates – 4th Quarter 
Reports 2017/18

 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate (incorporating 

RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Greater Manchester Energy Company – 
possible study group
Place Base presentation
GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information/discussion

Page 45



Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates – 3rd Quarter 
2018/19
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Feel Good Festival – plans for the 
2020 event

Page 46


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	$$MDocPackPublic.version0001
	Minutes


	6 Rochdale Boroughwide Housing
	7 Town Centre Management Companies - 2019/20 Grant
	8 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Community Safety Plan 2019 - 2022
	Append. 1 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Community Safety Plan 2019 - 2022

	10 Work Programme 2019/2020

